
  

 

CITY OF LYNDEN  

PARKS DEPARTMENT  
Main Number: (360) 354-6717  

  

  

Parks Committee Meeting Agenda  
City Hall - 300 Fourth Street 
4:00 PM November 15, 2021 

Roll Call 

Action Items 

1. Approval of Parks Committee Minutes- October 18, 2021  

2. Review and Discuss Camping Restrictions 
Dave & Heidi to explain and answer questions 

3. Approve “Dickinson House lease to Kyle Olivarez 

Information Items 

4. Glenning property 
-Notes from Glenning committee meeting 

  

5. Updates on Parks Projects: 
Benson Park  
Final agreement sent to SHKS 
 
Dickinson Park 
-House repairs almost finished 
-Basement flooring installed 
-House rental- Lease to Kyle Olivarez starting Nov. 11, 2021  
-Should budget for a new roof in 2022 
 
Depot to 8th Trail-Possible change in location of trail to 8th St. ? 

Items Added 

Next Meeting: December, 20, 2021  

1



 

 
 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 
Vern Meenderinck, Parks Director 
(360) 354 - 6717 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

PARKS COMMITTEE MINUTES  

October 18, 2021 
 

1. ROLL CALL: 
Members Present: Councilors Ron DeValois, Mark Wohlrab and Nick Laninga 
Staff Present: City Administrator John Williams; Parks Director Vern Meenderinck; 
and Parks Admin. Assistant Nancy Norris 
 

2. ACTION ITEMS: 
A. Approval of Parks Committee Minutes- September 20, 2021 

DeValois asked for a motion to approve the minutes Wohlrab motioned to 
approve the September 20, 2021, minutes and Laninga approved the motion. 
Action: The Parks Committee Minutes from September 20, 2021, were approved 

 
B. Review and approve Exclusion ordinance 

Parks Committee reviewed the Exclusion Ordinance. DeValois asked for a motion 
to approve the Exclusion Ordinance from Carmichaels Office to City Council for 
approval. Wohlrab motioned to forward the Exclusion Ordinance to City Council 
for Approval and Laninga supported the motion.  
Action: The Exclusion Ordinance was supported and forwarded to City Council for 
approval.  

  
C. Approve scope of work and fees for SHKS re: Benson barn 

Parks Committee discussed the scope of the work and fees from SHKS for the 
Benson Park barn. Laninga motioned to forward and accept the scope of work 
and fees for SHKS for the Benson Park Barn to City Council for approval, Wohlrab 
supported the motion.  
Action: the scope of work and fees for SHKS was supported and forwarded to City 
Council for Approval. 

 
D. Approve “Draft” Dickinson Park Conservation Stewardship Plan 

Parks Committee discussed the Dickinson Park Conservation Stewardship Plan. 
Laninga motioned to forward the plan to City Council for approval, Wohlrab 
supported the motion. 
Action: The Dickinson Park Conservation Stewardship Plan was supported and 
forwarded to City Council for Approval.  

 
E. Signs for Parks 

Painted or Sandblasted? Painted=$700 ea. 
Sandblasted on 1.75” redwood $1,450 ea.        

2



 

 
 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 
Vern Meenderinck, Parks Director 
(360) 354 - 6717 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

Sandblasted on 1.5” redwood= $1,300 ea.  
Signs Plus- $2,673 ea.  
Other thoughts/ideas? Get quotes for a look alike sandblasted redwood sign that 
 is made from foam. 
 Action: Get quotes and other sign design options. 

 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS:  

A. Glenning property 
First & Second priorities: Playground equipment and Restrooms 
Many more suggestions 
Harlan and committee will be working on getting more donations 

 
B. Updates on Parks projects: 

Benson Park  
Environmental inspection done. No asbestos, some lead paint in the milking 
parlor. 
Dickinson 
House inspection done- plenty of areas to look at. 
Extra flooring from the Fire station will be relocated to the basement. 
House rental: How soon? Advertise to City Employees first. Minimum term of 
lease 1 year. $2,000 per month if tenant mows and takes care of planted area 
around the house. $2250 per month if Parks Dept does the lawn care.  
  Community meeting was held on Oct 7, 2021, 68 in attendance, copy of 
comments attached. 
Depot to 8th Trail  
Possible change in location of trail to 8th St. 

 
C. Berthusen Park sign ideas 

Berthusen Advisory have been looking at adding a new welcome sign for 
Berthusen Park, attached is the most recent design concept. The Sign will be paid 
with funds allocated to the Terry De Valois memorial fund.  

 
4. ITEMS ADDED: 

Camping in Parks and on Public Property: 
Code changes and updating camping in parks and on public property will be 
reviewed by Parks Committee, CDC and Public Safety Committee. 
 
Meeting Adjourned:  5:08pm.  

NEXT MEETING DATE:  
November 15, 2021 

3



CITY OF LYNDEN
PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Heidi Gudde, Planning Director
(360) 354 - 5532

Planning Department Memorandum

To: Council Committees - Camping Ordinance

From: Dave Timmer

Date: November 1, 2021

Re: Public Lands Camping Ordinance

As Cities grapple with homelessness issues/ many municipalities in Washington have established

ordinances that prohibit "camping" on public property (parks, rights of ways, other public lands).

These ordinances can be a very simple "Camping on public property prohibited" - eg. Westport

6.24.010 which is a two-sentence prohibition of placing a tent, trailer, or other structure on public

property. Other Cities (Moses Lake 9.18, Everett 8.56, Vancouver 8.22) use a basic ordinance

template with subtle variations, most notably, in time and location that the prohibition is

applicable.

In 2018, a Federal Court case (Martin v. City of Boise) ruled it unconstitutional for Boise to enforce

ordinances that prohibit camping in public places if there is no other option for homeless

individuals. Essentially, if there is no public shelter space available, the city cannot criminalize

homelessness. Since that ruling, many cities have had to reexamine their related ordinances.

Others/ like Moses Lake, have worked to establish new shelter space in their city, so that they

could legally enforce their ban on camping in public places.

Cities have very different realities in managing this issue. At this time, Lynden has a very limited

population of those who are experiencing homelessness, and no ordinance in place that would

lay out prohibitions for camping on all or certain public places. It is a topic, though/that should

be proactively discussed.

The Planning Dept has put together a packet of resources meant to initiate discussion on this

matter. These include:

• Three examples of ordinances from representative cities in Washington

(Westport, Moses Lake, and Vancover). The Westport ordinance would likely not

pass legal challenge. The Moses Lake and Vancouver ordinance follow a similar

template and have recently been revised in light of the Martin v Boise case.

Moses Lake prohibits all camping on public property. Vancouver accommodates

camping at certain times and places.

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org

4



Two articles that are helpful at explaining the court case and its implications.

Finally, City legal counsel is currently working on a memo that explains the current state of the

law on this matter and what the City's options are. This counsel memo will be made available to

you when it is ready.

5



Examples of City Ordinance (Washington State)

Westport, not recently revised

Chapter 6.24

CAMPING ON PUBLIC PROPERTY

Sections:

6.24.010 Camping on public property prohibited.

6.24.010 Camping on public property prohibited.

It is unlawful for any person to park any motor vehicle or trailer or place a tent or any other

structure or material on public property for the purpose of sleeping therein or thereon or

maintaining the same as a temporary or permanent residence.

A person who violates or fails to comply with the provisions of this chapter or who counsels,

aids or abets such a violation is guilty of a misdemeanor. (Ord. 991, 1995)

The Westport Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1658, passed September 16,

2021.

6



Moses Lake, updated October 2020

Chapter 9.18

CAMPING

9.18.010 Findings:

People camping on public property and on public rights-of-way create a public health and safety hazard

due to the lack of proper electrical and/or sanitary facilities for these people. People without proper

sanitary facilities have openly urinated, defecated, and littered on public property on the public rights-

of-way. Use of public property for camping purposes or storage of personal property interferes with the

rights of others to use the areas for which they were intended.(Ord.2921,4/9/19)

9.18.020 Purpose:

It is the purpose of this chapter to prevent harm to the health or safety of the public and to promote the

public health, safety and general welfare by making public streets and other areas readily accessible to

the public and to prevent use of public property for camping purposes or storage of personal property

which interferes with the rights of others to use the areas for which they were intended. (Ord. 2921,

4/9/19)

9.18.030 Definitions:

The following definitions are applicable in this chapter unless the context otherwise requires:

"Camp" or "camping" means to pitch, create, use, or occupy camp facilities and/or to use camp

paraphernalia.

"Camp facilities" include, but are not limited to, tents, huts, temporary shelters made of any material, or

vehicles.

"Camp paraphernalia" includes, but is not limited to, tarpaulins, cots, beds, sleeping bags, blankets,

mattresses, hammocks, or non-City designated cooking facilities and similar equipment.

"City" means the City of Moses Lake.

"Park" means the same as defined in Section 12.36.020.

7



"Store" means to put aside or accumulate for use when needed, to put for safekeeping, to place or leave

in a location.

"Street" means any highway, lane, road, street, right-of-way, boulevard, alley, and every way or place in

the City of Moses Lake that is publicly owned or maintained for public vehicular travel.

"Vehicle" means the same as defined in RCW 46.04.670, which is hereby adopted as now enacted or

hereafter amended. (Ord. 2921, 4/9/19)

9.18.040 Unlawful Camping:

A. At any time, it shall be unlawful for any person to camp, occupy camp facilities for purposes of

habitation, or use camp paraphernalia in the following areas, except as otherwise provided by ordinance

or as permitted pursuant to Section 9.18.070:

1. Any park;

2. Any street; or

3. Any publicly owned or maintained parking lot or other publicly owned or maintained area,

improved or unimproved.

B. At any time, it shall be unlawful for any person to occupy a vehicle for the purpose of camping while

that vehicle is parked in the following areas, except as otherwise provided by ordinance or as permitted

pursuant to Section 9.18.070:

1. Any park;

2. Any street; or

3. Any publicly owned or maintained parking lot or other publicly owned or maintained area,

improved or unimproved. (Ord. 2959, 10/27/20; Ord. 2921, 4/9/19)

9.18.050 Unlawful Storage of Personal Property in Public Places:

At any time, it shall be unlawful for any person to store personal property, including camp facilities

(other than vehicles) and camp paraphernalia, in the following areas, except as otherwise provided by

ordinance or as permitted pursuant to Section 9.18.070:

A. Any park;

8



B. Any street; or

C. Any publicly owned or maintained parking lot or publicly owned or maintained area, improved or

unimproved. (Ord. 2959, 10/27/20; Ord. 2921,4/9/19)

9.18.060 Penalty for Violations:

Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed to have committed a civil

infraction and shall be subject to the following penalties as set forth in Chapter 1.08:

First violation within a twelve (12) C-21

month period penalty

Second and subsequent violation C-18

within a twelve (12) month period penalty

Each and every day, or portion thereof, that the violation continues shall constitute a separate violation.

(Ord.2927,5/14/19)

9.18.070 Permit:

A. The City Manager, or his/her designee, is authorized to permit persons to camp, occupy camp

facilities, use camp paraphernalia, or store personal property in parks, streets, or any publicly owned

parking lot or publicly owned area, improved or unimproved, in the City of Moses Lake.

B. Upon receipt of an application for any permit under this chapter, the City Manager, or his/her

designee, shall send a copy of the application to the City departments of police, parks, public works,

community development, and fire. Each of these departments shall inspect the application and each

such department shall report to the City Manager, or his/her designee, within ten (10) working days

after the filing of the application. Such reports shall mention any problems which the proposed activity

is expected to pose for the public. It shall make any necessary recommendations for protecting the

public peace, health, safety, life, property, and welfare in the event a permit is, or was, issued.

C. The City Manager, or his/her designee, is authorized to promulgate other rules and regulations

regarding the implementation and enforcement of this chapter.

9



D. The City Manager, or his/her designee, may approve a permit as provided under this section when,

from a consideration of the application, reports from other City departments, and from such other

information as may otherwise be obtained, he or she finds that:

1. Adequate sanitary facilities are provided and accessible at or near the proposed camp site;

2. Adequate trash receptacles and trash collection are provided; and

3. The camping activity will not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the safety, peace, comfort

and repose of private property owners.

E. No permit shall be issued for a period of time in excess of fourteen (14) calendar days in any one (1)

calendar year.

F. The City Manager, or his/her designee, is authorized to revoke a permit that has been issued if he or

she finds lack of compliance with any requirement of subsection D of this section, or of any rule or

regulation promulgated under subsection C of this section, or of any ordinance or statute.

G. Any person who is denied a permit, or had his/her permit revoked, may appeal the

denial/revocation to a hearings examiner appointed by the City Manager, or his/her designee. Notice of

appeal must be in writing, and filed with the City Clerk within seven (7) working days from the date of

the denial. (Ord. 2921, 4/9/19)

9.18.080 Public Duty Created:

A. It is expressly the purpose of this chapter to provide for and promote the health, safety and welfare

of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or group

of persons or individual who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this

chapter.

B. Nothing contained in this chapter is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of

any liability on the part of the City, or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage

resulting from any action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of

this chapter by its officers, employees or agents. (Ord. 2921, 4/9/19)

10



Vancouver. WA updated October 2021

Chapter 8.22

CAMPING

8.22.010 Findings.

It is the purpose of this chapter to address:

A. Adverse Public Impacts of Camping. People camping on public property and on public rights-of-way

create a public health and safety hazard due to the lack of proper food storage, cooking, electrical and/or

sanitary facilities. People without proper sanitary facilities have openly urinated, defecated, and littered on

private and public property and on the public rights-of-way. Use of public property for camping purposes or

storage of personal property interferes with the rights of others to use the areas for the purposes for which

they were intended and creates public health and safety dangers to the city's sensitive ecological areas,

including the city's water sources, through illegal dumping and improper disposal of human waste. People

cooking with open flames while camping endanger the lives and property of those nearby through

uncontrolled fire.

B. Adverse Impacts of Camping on the Poor and Infirm. Many individuals who camp on public property do so

not by choice, but due to a lack of financial means to afford adequate shelter. These individuals are also

adversely mentally and physically impacted by camping. Single female camp occupants experience a

disproportionately high incidence of violent crime as compared to other people. Families with children who

camp as a result of a lack of adequate shelter are also disproportionately adversely impacted through risk of

physical danger and impediments to childhood education.

C. Constitutional Limitations on Available Remedies. The Eighth Amendment to the United States

Constitution prohibits "cruel and unusual punishment"; the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals has interpreted

this prohibition to forbid cities from criminalizing camping in all places, at all times, by those who lack the

financial means to pay for adequate shelter unless adequate shelter is available to such person free of

charge.

D. Supportive Campsites. The establishment of supportive campsites creates a means of connecting

individuals to services that reduce barriers to obtaining shelter and housing while providing options for lawful

camping which are incidental to the receipt of such services.

E. Need for Themed Supportive Campsites. The city has an important government interest in protecting the

physical safety and emotional well-being of residents of campsites occupied by single occupant females, and

11



families with children. The establishment ofthemed supportive campsites as defined herein reserved for

members of these groups serves that important government interest and is substantially related to

accomplishing those objectives. (Ord. M-4348 § 2, 2021; Ord. M-4133 § 1, 2015; Ord. M-3323, 1997)

8.22.020 Purpose.

It is the purpose of this chapter to:

A. Prevent harm to the health and safety of individuals who camp due to a lack of financial means to afford

adequate shelter by establishing supportive campsites where adequate shelter is provided to the poor or

infirm at no cost.

B. Prevent harm to the health and safety of the public and to promote the public health, safety and general

welfare by prohibiting camping within all camping impact areas at all times, except as allowed within a

supportive campsite.

C. Prevent harm to the health or safety of the public and to promote the public health, safety and general

welfare by making public streets and other areas readily accessible to the public and to prevent use of public

property for camping purposes or storage of personal property which interferes with the rights of others to

use the areas for which they were intended. (Ord. M-4348 § 3, 2021; Ord. M-3323, 1997)

8.22.030 Definitions.

The following definitions are applicable in this chapter unless the context otherwise requires:

"Camp" or "camping" means to pitch, create, use, or occupy camp facilities for the purposes of habitation, as

evidenced by the use of camp paraphernalia.

"Camp facilities" include, but are not limited to, tents, huts, temporary shelters, or vehicles.

"Camp paraphernalia" includes, but is not limited to, tarpaulins, cots, beds, sleeping bags, blankets,

mattresses, hammocks, or non-city-designated cooking facilities and similar equipment.

"Camping impact area" means the areas specified within VMC 8.22.040(B).

"Family" means two or more "family or household members" as defined by RCW 26.52.010.

"Park" means the same as defined in VMC 15.04.020.

12



"Store" means to put aside or accumulate for use when needed, to put for safekeeping, to place or leave in a

location.

"Street" means any highway, lane, road, street, right-of-way, boulevard, alley, and every way or place in the

city of Vancouver that is publicly owned or maintained for public vehicular travel.

"Supportive campsite" means a camp facility for which a permit has been sought and obtained from the

Vancouver city manager, or their designee, pursuant to VMC 8.22.070(B), and/or a city-sponsored supportive

campsite established under VMC 8.22.070(F).

"Supportive campsite operator" means a person, firm, corporation, or municipal corporation with a valid

supportive campsite operator permit issued pursuant to VMC 8.22.070 or, in the case of a city-sponsored

supportive campsite, an approved camp facility operator as designated by the city manager or their designee.

"Themed supportive campsite" means a supportive campsite with spaces reserved for either (1) a single

occupant identifying as female; or (2) a family with one or more children under 18 years of age at the time of

admission to the supportive campsite.

"Vehicle" means the same as defined in RCW 46.04.670, as adopted by Ordinance M-3276. (Ord, M-4348 § 4,

2021; Ord. M-4133 § 1, 2015; Ord. M-3323, 1997)

8.22.040 Unlawful camping.

A. Supportive Campsites. Camping shall be allowed at all times within supportive campsites by those

residing therein. Residence in a supportive campsite shall be at the approval of the supportive campsite

operator.

B. Camping Impact Areas. Except to the extent expressly allowed pursuant to subsection A of this section, it

shall be unlawful to camp at any time within a camping impact area. The following locations are camping

impact areas:

1. Within 1,000 feet of the nearest point of any supportive campsite;

2. Upon any land used to operate a public water station, wastewater or stormwater facility;

3. Within 200 feet of the nearest edge of the Columbia River, Vancouver Lake, Burton Channel,

Peterson Channel, Fisher's Creek, or Burnt Bridge Creek.

C. Daytime Camping Prohibited. Except as otherwise provided within this chapter, during the hours of 6:30

a.m. to 9:30 p.m., it shall be unlawful for any person to camp, occupy camp facilities for purposes of

13



habitation, or use camp paraphernalia in the following areas, except as otherwise provided by ordinance or

as permitted pursuant to VMC 8.22.070:

1. Any park;

2. Any street; or

3. Any publicly owned or maintained parking lot or other publicly owned or maintained area, improved

orunimproved.

D. Daytime Camping in Vehicles Prohibited. Except as otherwise provided within this chapter, during the

hours of 6:30 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., it shall be unlawful for any person to occupy a vehicle for the purpose of

camping while that vehicle is parked in the following areas, except as otherwise provided by ordinance or as

permitted pursuant to VMC 8.22.070:

1. Any park;

2. Any street; or

3. Any publicly owned or maintained parking lot or other publicly owned or maintained area, improved

or unimproved. (Ord. M-4348 § 5, 2021; Ord. M-4133 § 1, 2015; Ord. M-3323,1997)

8.22.050 Unlawful storage of personal property in public places.

Except as otherwise provided within this chapter, during the hours of 6:30 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., it shall be

unlawful for any person to store personal property, including camp facilities (other than vehicles) and camp

paraphernalia, in the following areas, except as otherwise provided by ordinance or as permitted pursuant to

VMC 8.22.070:

1. Any park;

2. Any street; or

3. Any publicly owned or maintained parking lot or publicly owned or maintained area, improved or

unimproved. (Ord. M-4348 § 6, 2021; Ord. M-4133 § 1, 2015; Ord. M-3323,1997)

8.22.060 Penalty for violations.

Violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is a misdemeanor. Any person violating any of the provisions

of this chapter shall, upon conviction of such violation, be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand

14



dollars or by imprisonment not to exceed ninety days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. (Ord. M-3323,

1997)

8.22.070 Permit.

A. Authority of the City Manager. The city manager is authorized to:

1. Promulgate procedures and policies necessary for the acceptance of applications, investigation,

issuance, denial, and revocation of all camping permits of the types specified in this chapter and the

establishment ofcity-sponsored supportive campsites;

2. Issue, deny, and revoke camping permits in furtherance of the purposes of this chapter;

3. Delegate any or all functions under this chapter; and

4. Request the assistance of other city departments to investigate, administer, and enforce the

provisions of this chapter.

B. Types of Camping Permits. The following types of camping permits are established and may be issued by

the city manager, or their designee, pursuant to procedures and policies promulgated under this chapter:

1. Nighttime Employment Camping Permit. The city manager, or their designee, is authorized to permit

persons who present satisfactory evidence of nighttime employment to camp, occupy camp facilities,

use camp paraphernalia, or store personal property in parks, streets, or any publicly owned parking lot

or publicly owned area, improved or unimproved, in the city of Vancouver, except within camping

impact areas as prohibited by VMC 8.22.040(B).

2. Supportive Campsite Operator Permit. The city manager, or their designee, is authorized to issue a

supportive campsite operator permit to a person, firm, corporation, or municipal corporation upon

receipt of satisfactory evidence that the applicant possesses suitable qualifications to operate a

supportive campsite in compliance with the provisions of this chapter. The duration of a supportive

campsite operator permit shall be for an initial period of not more than one year. A supportive campsite

operator permit may be renewed no more than twice by the city manager for a period not to exceed

one year each. The request for an extension shall be processed in the same manner as an initial

supportive campsite operator permit application.

a. Upon receipt of an application for a supportive campsite operator permit under this chapter,

the city manager, or their designee, shall provide notice to all owners and residents of record of

property, as shown on the most recent property tax assessment roll, located within 1,200 feet of

the proposed supportive campsite and shall send a copy of the application to the city departments

of police, parks, public works, community development, and fire. Each of these departments shall

15



inspect the application and each such department shall report to the city manager, or their

designee, any problems which the proposed activity is expected to pose for the public. Such reports

shall make any necessary recommendations for protecting the public peace, health, safety, life,

property, and welfare in the event a permit is, or was, issued.

b. In evaluating whether to grant or deny an application for a supportive campsite operator

permit, the city manager, or their designee, shall evaluate whether the resulting supportive

campsite will be (i) equitably dispersed throughout the city in relation to other existing supportive

campsites, (ii) located where the supportive campsite will avoid areas of highest economic

vulnerability within surrounding residential areas in the city, (iii) afford accessibility in compliance

with the Americans with Disabilities Act, (iv) be located within one-half mile of public transit, and

(v) comply with all requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act.

c. The city manager, or their designee, shall review and approve rules and regulations regarding

the admission to, and operation of, all supportive campsites.

C. The city manager, or their designee, may approve a permit as provided under this section when, from a

consideration of the application, reports from other city departments, and from such other information as

may otherwise be obtained, the city manager, or their designee, finds that:

1. Adequate sanitary facilities are provided and accessible at or near the proposed campsite;

2. Adequate trash receptacles and trash collection are provided; and

3. The camping activity will not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the safety, peace, comfort and

repose of private property owners.

D. The city manager, or their designee, is authorized to revoke a permit that has been issued if the city

manager, or their designee, finds lack of compliance with any requirement of subsection C of this section, or

evidence that a supportive campsite operator has failed or refused to require campsite residents comply with

any rule or regulation promulgated under subsection (B)(2)(c) of this section, or of any ordinance or statute.

E. Any person who is denied a permit, or had their permit revoked, may appeal the denial/revocation to a

hearings examiner appointed by the city manager, or their designee. Notice of appeal must be in writing, and

filed with the city clerk within seven working days from the date of the denial or revocation.

F. City staff may propose city-sponsored supportive campsites. Such proposals will be evaluated for approval

by the city manager, or their designee, applying the criteria under subsections (B)(2) and (C) of this section

and the availability of city resources. (Ord. M-4348 § 7, 2021; Ord. M-4133 § l, 2015; Ord. M-3323,1997)

16



8.22.080 Public duty created.

A. It is expressly the purpose of this ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety and welfare of

the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or group of

persons or individual who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this ordinance.

B. Nothing contained in this ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any

liability on the part of the City, or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from

any action or inaction on the part of the City related in any mannertothe enforcement of this ordinance by

its officers, employees or agents. (Ord. M-4133 §1, 2015; Ord. M-4133 §1, 2015; Ord. M-3323, 1997)

The Vancouver Municipal Code is current through Ordinance M-4348, passed September 20, 2021.

17



fSMRSC
Empowering local governments

Is Your Camping Ordinance Constitutional?

October 1, 2018 by Oskar Rey

Category: Homelessness

A recent Ninth Circuit Federal Court of

Appeals case — Martin v. CityofBoise

— ruled that it is unconstitutional for

the City of Boise to enforce

ordinances prohibiting camping in

public places against homeless

individuals at times when no shelter

space is available. Washington is part

of the Ninth Circuit, so this decision

applies to Washington municipalities.

gj Many Washington municipalities have

ordinances that prohibit camping and

sleeping on public property (e.g.,

camping ordinances). This blog will examine the case and provide thoughts on the status of such ordinances in light

of this decision.

Martin Requires that there be Alternatives to Public Camping

Martin was a challenge by homeless individuals to Boise's enforcement of camping ordinances against homeless

individuals when no shelter space is available. They argued that citing homeless individuals under such circumstances

is tantamount to criminalizing homelessness. The court agreed, stating:

an ordinance violates the Eighth Amendment insofar as it imposes criminal sanctions against homeless

individuals for sleeping outdoors, on public property, when no alternative shelter is available to them.

There was extensive discussion of Boise's attempt to show that there is sufficient shelter space for Boise's homeless

population. Of the three shelters in Boise, two are operated by churches, and there was evidence that the church

shelters required participation in religious activities. The court ruled that shelter space is not "available" if homeless

individuals are required to participate in religious instruction in exchange for shelter. The court also noted that all the

shelters had limits on how long a person can stay, and that the annual, point-in-time homeless counts suggested

there were more unsheltered homeless than shelter spaces in Boise.

18



From the court's standpoint, it is not a simple question of whether an ordinance prohibiting camping on public

property is constitutional. Rather, enforcement of such an ordinance is cruel and unusual punishment under the

Eighth Amendment if a homeless person has no alternative to living and sleeping outside:

As long as there is no option of sleeping indoors, the government cannot criminalize indigent, homeless people

for sleeping outdoors, on public property, on the false premise they had a choice in the matter.

In other words, camping ordinances are not inherently unconstitutional, but a municipality can be in violation of the

Eighth Amendment if the person cited had no meaningful alternative to sleeping outside.

Additional Information on the Scope of Martin

In footnote 8, the Martin court set forth some limits on the scope of its decision:

1. It does not cover individuals who do have access to adequate temporary shelter but choose not to use it.

2. Even when shelter is unavailable, an ordinance may prohibit sitting, lying, or sleeping outside at certain times or in

certain locations.

3. An ordinance may prohibit obstruction of rights-of-way or the erection of certain types of structures.

4. Whether such ordinances are consistent with the Eighth Amendment will depend on "whether it punishes a

person for lacking the means to live out the 'universal and unavoidable consequences of being human...'"

What Should Cities Do in Response to Martin?

Martin raises both legal and policy issues for a municipality to consider:

• If a municipality is enforcing camping ordinances, it should obtain review by its legal counsel in light of the Martin

case and suspend enforcement until that process is complete.

• Many camping ordinances predate the rise of the homelessness population in this region. As a policy matter, a

municipality may want to review its camping ordinances to determine whether they are in keeping with current

legislative priorities.

• A municipality should decide, as a matter of policy, if it wants to create a system that tracks the number of

available shelter beds and the number of homeless individuals in its jurisdiction. Being able to show that shelter

beds are available will require ongoing efforts and may be logistically difficult since the number of homeless

individuals and the number of shelter beds in a jurisdiction will fluctuate over time. Municipalities will need to

coordinate with other entities to the extent shelters in the area are operated by third-party agencies or nonprofits.

If a municipality opts not to track this information, then it will be vulnerable to a legal challenge if it enforces

ordinances that prohibit camping or sleeping in public.

• A municipality can consider limiting the applicability of camping ordinances to certain times of day or certain types

of properties. Under Martin, the questions will be whether there is shelter space available or whether there are

places in the jurisdiction where a homeless individual can sleep or camp without violating camping ordinances.

Questions? Comments?

If you have comments about this blog post, please comment below or email me at orey@mrsc.org. If you have

questions about this or other local government issues, please use our Ask MRSC form or call us at (206) 625-

1300 or (800) 933-6772.

19



MRSC is a private nonprofit organization serving local governments in Washington State. Eligible government

agencies in Washington State may use our free, one-on-one Ask MRSC service to get answers to legal, policy, or

financial questions.

About Oskar Rey

Oskar Rey has practiced municipal law since 1995 and served as Assistant City Attorney for the City of Kirkland

from 2005 to 2016, where he worked on a wide range of municipal topics, including land use, public records,

and public works. Oskar is a life-long resident of Washington and graduated from the University of Washington

School of Law in 1992.

VIEW ALL POSTS BY OSKAR REY >

Follow us:

© 2021 Municipal Research and Seivices Center of Washington (MRSC). All rights reserved. PrJVBCy & Term S.

20



Camping Ordinance Criminalized Homeless Status

-^'. nrpa.org/parks-recreation-magazine/2019/july/camping-ordinance-crirninalized-homeless-status/

July 8, 2019, Department, by James C. Kozlowski, J.D., Ph.D.

Law Review

On May 7, 2019, Denver voters overwhelmingly rejected a "Right to Survive" referendum,

which would have effectively repealed the city's existing anti-camping ordinance in public

parks and spaces. This vote came in the wake of the federal appeals court "City of Boise"

opinion described herein. In this case, federal appeals court for the 9th Circuit held

unconstitutional any such camping ordinance, which effectively criminalizes the mere status

of being homeless. In an apparent response to this federal court opinion, several cities in the

West have reportedly ceased enforcing their anti-camping laws. (Search terms: Denver,

homeless, camping - See: "Denver Voters Deny Homeless the 'Right to Survive.' Here's

What That Means." and " What is Denver Initiative 300: Right to survive.")

The growing concern among public park administrators is that any such legislated "Right to

Survive" or "Right to Shelter" policy would override existing urban camping ordinances and

could also effectively nullify existing park curfew regulations. Without directly addressing the

1/8

21



lack of available shelters and affordable housing for the homeless, public parks could

become low-cost de facto open-air homeless shelters with increased trash and sanitation

burdens threatening the environmental integrity of park resources.

While rejecting a camping ordinance that could effectively criminalize the mere status of

being homeless, the federal appeals court in the "City of Boise" opinion described below did

not issue an absolute ban on such local laws. On the contrary, the federal appeals court

found "an ordinance prohibiting sitting, lying, or sleeping outside at particular times or in

particular locations," as well as "an ordinance barring the obstruction of public rights of way

or the erection of certain structures...might well be constitutionally permissible."

In determining the constitutionality of an existing or proposed anti-camping ordinance, the

issue, however, would be whether a law or regulation "punishes a person for lacking the

means to live out the universal and unavoidable consequences of being human."

Accordingly, in considering the constitutionality of an anti-camping ordinance, a federal court

would necessarily examine what viable alternatives existed, if any, to satisfy the basic human

need for shelter by homeless individuals who might otherwise have no other option but to

resort to "camping" in public parks and places.

Sleeping Ban in Public Places

In the case of Martin v. CityofBoise, 902 F.3d 1031, 2018 U.S. App. LEXIS 25032 (9th Cir.

4/1/2019), the issue before the United States Court of Appeals for the 9th Circuit was

"whether the Eighth Amendment's prohibition on cruel and unusual punishment bars a city

from prosecuting people criminally for sleeping outside on public property when those people

have no home or other shelter to go to."

The plaintiffs were six current or former residents of the city of Boise ("the City") who are

homeless or have recently been homeless. These homeless individuals had lived in or

around Boise since 2007. Between 2007 and 2009, each plaintiff alleged he or she was cited

by Boise police for violating one or both of two city ordinances: the "Camping Ordinance" and

the "Disorderly Conduct Ordinance." With one exception, all plaintiffs were sentenced to time

served for all convictions; on two occasions, one plaintiff was sentenced to one additional

day in jail.

The Camping Ordinance, Boise City Code § 9-10-02, made it a misdemeanor to use "any of

the streets, sidewalks, parks, or public places as a camping place at any time." The Camping

Ordinance defined "camping" as "the use of public property as a temporary or permanent

place of dwelling, lodging, or residence."

The Disorderly Conduct Ordinance, Boise City Code § 6-01-05, prohibited "occupying,

lodging, or sleeping in any building, structure, or public place, whether public or private
without the permission of the owner or person entitled to possession or in control thereof."

Homeless Population Shelter

2/8

22



Boise has had a significant and increasing homeless population. According to a January

2014 count taken by the Idaho Housing and Finance Association, there were 753 homeless

individuals in Ada County where Boise is the county seat; 46 of the reported homeless were

"unsheltered," or living in places unsuited for human habitation, such as parks or sidewalks.

In 2016, reported data indicated there were 867 homeless individuals counted in Ada

County, 125 of whom were unsheltered. This reported data likely underestimated the number

of homeless since the count reflected a one-night point in time. Moreover, many homeless

individuals may have access to temporary housing on a given night. In addition, weather

conditions may affect the number of available volunteers and the number of homeless

people staying at shelters or accessing services on the night of the count.

In the city of Boise, three homeless shelters run by private, nonprofit organizations were the

only shelters in Ada County offering emergency shelter services. One shelter, ("Sanctuary")

operated by a religious organization, did not impose any religious requirements on its

residents and was open to men, women and children of all faiths. Because of its limited

capacity, Sanctuary frequently has to turn away homeless people seeking shelter.

In 2010, Sanctuary reached full capacity in the men's area "at least half of every month," and

the women's area reached capacity "almost every night of the week." In 2014, the shelter

reported that it was full for men, women or both on 38 percent of nights. Sanctuary provides

beds first to people who spent the previous night at Sanctuary. At 9 p.m. each night, it allots

any remaining beds to those who added their names to the shelter's waiting list.

The other two shelters in Boise were both operated by the Boise Rescue Mission ("BRM"), a

Christian nonprofit organization. One of those shelters, the River of Life Rescue Mission

("River of Life"), is open exclusively to men; the other, the City Light Home for Women and

Children ("City Light"), shelters women and children only.

BRM's facilities provide two primary "programs" for the homeless: the Emergency Services

Program and the New Life Discipleship Program. The Emergency Services Program

provides temporary shelter, food and clothing to anyone in need. Christian religious services

are offered to those seeking shelter through the Emergency Services Program. The shelters

display messages and iconography on the walls, and the intake form for emergency shelter

guests includes a religious message. The Discipleship Program is an "intensive, Christ-

based residential recovery program" of which "religious study is the very essence."

Police Shelter Protocol

The plaintiffs filed suit in the United States District Court for the District of Idaho in October of

2009, alleging that their previous citations, under the Camping Ordinance and the Disorderly

Conduct Ordinance, violated the U.S. Constitution Cruel and Unusual Punishment Clause of

the Eighth Amendment. Under federal civil rights law, the plaintiffs sought damages for those

alleged violations and a court order precluding any future enforcement of the ordinances by

the city of Boise.

3/8

23



After the litigation began, the Boise Police Department promulgated a new "Special Order,"

effective as of January 1, 2010. The Special Order prohibited enforcement of either the

Camping Ordinance or the Disorderly Conduct Ordinance against any homeless person on

public property on any night when no shelter had "an available overnight space." City police

implemented the Special Order through a two-step procedure known as the "Shelter

Protocol."

Under the Shelter Protocol, if any shelter in Boise reaches capacity on a given night, that

shelter will so notify the police at roughly 11 p.m. Each shelter has discretion to determine

whether it is full, and Boise police have no other mechanism or criteria for gauging whether a

shelter is full.

The Camping Ordinance and the Disorderly Conduct Ordinance were both amended in 2014

to codify the Special Order's mandate that "[l]aw enforcement officers shall not enforce [the

ordinances] when the individual is on public property and there is no available overnight

shelter" (Boise City Code §§ 6-01-05, 9-10-02).

Since the Shelter Protocol was adopted, Sanctuary has reported that it was full on almost 40

percent of nights. Although BRM agreed to the Shelter Protocol, its internal policy is never to

turn any person away because of a lack of space, and neither BRM shelter has ever reported

that it was full. If all shelters are full on the same night, police are to refrain from enforcing

either ordinance. Presumably because the BRM shelters have not reported full, Boise police

continue to issue citations regularly under both ordinances.

Credible Enforcement Threat

In July 2011, the federal district court granted summary judgment to the City, holding the

Special Order and Shelter Protocol referenced in the amendment ordinances effectively

"permitted camping or sleeping in a public place when no shelter space was available." As a

result, the federal district court found that the plaintiffs' claims were "moot" because there

was no longer a "credible threat" of future prosecution under the challenged ordinances:

If the Ordinances are not to be enforced when the shelters are full, those Ordinances do not

inflict a constitutional injury upon these particular plaintiffs... [T]here is no known citation of a

homeless individual under the Ordinances for camping or sleeping on public property on any

night or morning when he or she was unable to secure shelter due to a lack of shelter

capacity... [TJhere has not been a single night when all three shelters in Boise called in to

report they were simultaneously full for men, women or families.

On appeal, the federal appeals court held the district court had erred in finding the plaintiffs'

claims were moot because "the Special Order was a statement of administrative policy and

so could be amended or reversed at any time by the Boise Chief of Police." Accordingly, the

4/8

24



federal appeals court found: "The City had not met its 'heavy burden' of demonstrating that

the challenged conduct—enforcement of the two ordinances against homeless individuals

with no access to shelter— could not reasonably be expected to recur."

In addition, the appeals court found plaintiffs had presented evidence of a "credible threat of

prosecution under one or both ordinances in the future at a time when they are unable to

stay at any Boise homeless shelter." In so doing, the court further noted "the City is wholly

reliant on the shelters to self-reportwhen they are full."

In particular, the court found undisputed evidence that the Sanctuary shelter was "full as to

men on a substantial percentage of nights, perhaps as high as 50 percent." While the BRM

facility claimed it would "never turn people away due to lack of space," the court found the

BRM would, however, "refuse to shelter homeless people who exhaust the number of days

allotted by the facilities." Further, the court found that the homeless could be denied access

to shelter facilities based on the time of their arrival:

BRM's facilities may deny shelter to any individual who arrives after 5:30 p.m., and generally

will deny shelter to anyone arriving after 8:00 p.m. Sanctuary, however, does not assign beds

to persons on its waiting list until 9:00 p.m. Thus, by the time a homeless individual on the

Sanctuary waiting list discovers that the shelter has no room available, it may be too late to

seek shelter at either BRM facility.

In addition, the federal appeals court found evidence that some BRM programs required the

homeless to participate in certain religious activities. According to the court, the City would

violate the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment to effectively coerce a homeless

individual to attend religious-based "treatment programs" to avoid prosecution under the

ordinances. In this particular instance, several of the plaintiffs objected to the "overall

religious atmosphere" in an available homeless shelter, including "the Christian messaging

on the shelter's intake form and the Christian iconography on the shelter walls."

Under these circumstances, the federal appeals court found homeless individuals "may be

forced to choose between sleeping outside on nights when Sanctuary is full (and risking

arrest under the ordinances) or enrolling in BRM programming that is antithetical to his or her

religious beliefs."

Eighth Amendment Violation?

Under the circumstances, the issue before the federal appeals court was, therefore, whether

"the Cruel and Unusual Punishments Clause of the Eighth Amendment" in the U.S.

Constitution precluded "the enforcement of a statute prohibiting sleeping outside against

homeless individuals with no access to alternative shelter."

As cited by the court, the Eighth Amendment states: "Excessive bail shall not be required,

nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted" (U.S. Const.,

amend. VIII). Further, the court noted the Cruel and Unusual Punishment Clause

5/8

25



"circumscribes the criminal process in three ways":

First, it limits the type of punishment the government may impose; second, it proscribes

punishment "grossly disproportionate" to the severity of the crime; and third, it places

substantive limits on what the government may criminalize.

In this particular instance, the court found the third limitation was pertinent; i.e., substantive

limits on what the government may criminalize:

The entire thrust of the Cruel and Unusual Punishment is that criminal penalties may be

inflicted only if the accused has committed some act, has engaged in some behavior, which

society has an interest in preventing, or perhaps in historical common law terms, has

committed some actus reus [guilty act]. It thus does not deal with the question of whether

certain conduct cannot constitutionally be punished because it is, in some sense,

involuntary... [CJriminal penalties may not be inflicted upon a person for being in a condition

he is powerless to change.

Accordingly, the federal appeals court acknowledged, "the Eighth Amendment prohibits the

state from punishing an involuntary act or condition if it is the unavoidable consequence of

one's status or being." In particular, the appeals court found: "This principle compels the

conclusion that the Eighth Amendment prohibits the imposition of criminal penalties for

sitting, sleeping, or lying outside on public property for homeless individuals who cannot
obtain shelter."

Whether sitting, lying, and sleeping are defined as acts or conditions, they are universal and

unavoidable consequences of being human. Moreover, any conduct at issue here is

involuntary and inseparable from status — they are one and the same, given that human

beings are biologically compelled to rest, whether by sitting, lying, or sleeping. As a result,

just as the state may not criminalize the state of being "homeless in public places," the state

may not criminalize conduct that is an unavoidable consequence of being homeless —

namely sitting, lying, or sleeping on the streets.

While the City could not criminalize the state of being homeless in public places, the federal

appeals court cautioned: "Our holding is a narrow one." Specifically, the federal appeals

court would "in no way dictate to the City that it must provide sufficient shelter for the

homeless, or allow anyone who wishes to sit, lie, or sleep on the streets at any time and at

any place."

We hold only that so long as there is a greater number of homeless individuals in a

jurisdiction than the number of available beds in shelters, the jurisdiction cannot prosecute

homeless individuals for involuntarily sitting, lying, and sleeping in public.

That is, as long as there is no option of sleeping indoors, the government cannot criminalize

indigent, homeless people for sleeping outdoors, on public property, on the false premise

they had a choice in the matter.

6/8

26



As applied to the homeless plaintiffs in this case, the appeals court found the challenged

ordinances "effectively punish them for something for which they may not be convicted under

the Eighth Amendment — sleeping, eating and other innocent conduct." As noted by the

court:, "the two ordinances criminalize the simple act of sleeping outside on public property,

whether bare or with a blanket or other basic bedding."

As characterized by the federal appeals court, the Disorderly Conduct Ordinance, on its face,

criminalized "[o]ccupying, lodging, or sleeping in any building, structure or place, whether

public or private" without permission (Boise City Code § 6-01-05). Similarly, the court found

the Camping Ordinance criminalized using "any of the streets, sidewalks, parks or public

places as a camping place at any time" (Boise City Code § 9-10-02). Moreover, the court

noted the ordinance defined "camping" broadly:

The term "camp" or "camping" shall mean the use of public property as a temporary or

permanent place of dwelling, lodging, or residence, or as a living accommodation at any time

between sunset and sunrise, or as a sojourn.

Indicia of camping may include, but are not limited to, storage of personal belongings, using

tents or other temporary structures for sleeping or storage of personal belongings, carrying

on cooking activities or making any fire in an unauthorized area, or any of these activities in

combination with one another or in combination with either sleeping or making preparations

to s/eep (including the laying down of bedding for the purpose of sleeping).

Further, the federal appeals court noted the Camping Ordinance was "frequently enforced

against homeless individuals with some elementary bedding, whether or not any of the other

listed indicia of'camping'were present"; i.e., "the erection of temporary structures, the

activity of cooking or making fire, or the storage of personal property."

For example, a Boise police officer testified that he cited plaintiff Pamela Hawkes under the

Camping Ordinance for sleeping outside "wrapped in a blanket with her sandals off and next

to her," for sleeping in a public restroom "with blankets," and for sleeping in a park "on a

blanket, wrapped in blankets on the ground."

Based on this evidence, the federal appeals court found the Camping Ordinance "can be,

and allegedly is, enforced against homeless individuals who take even the most rudimentary

precautions to protect themselves from the elements."

Accordingly, as applied to the facts of this case, the federal appeals court held: "a

municipality cannot criminalize such behavior consistently with the Eighth Amendment when

no sleeping space is practically available in any shelter." In making this determination,

however, the federal appeals court noted the following limitations on its holding:

Naturally, our holding does not cover individuals who do have access to adequate temporary

shelter, whether because they have the means to pay for it or because it is realistically

available to them for free, but who choose not to use it. Nor do we suggest that a jurisdiction

7/8

27



with insufficient shelter can never criminalize the act of sleeping outside. Even where shelter

/s unavailable, an ordinance prohibiting sitting, lying, or sleeping outside at particular times or

in particular locations might well be constitutionally permissible.

So, too, might an ordinance barring the obstruction of public rights of way or the erection of

certain structures [might be constitutional]. Whether some other ordinance is consistent with

the Eighth Amendment will depend, as here, on whether it punishes a person for lacking the

means to live out the "universal and unavoidable consequences of being human" in the way

the ordinance prescribes.

The appeals court, therefore, reversed the judgment of the federal district court granting

summary judgment to the City and remanded the case for further proceedings. On remand,

the district court would consider whether the City's amended ordinances would effectively

preclude any future "criminal sanctions against homeless individuals for sleeping outdoors,

on public property, when no alternative shelter is available to them."

James C. Kozlowski. J.D., Ph.P., is an Attorney and Associate Professor in the School of

Recreation, Health and Tourism at George Mason University. Law review articles archive

(1982 to present).

28



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 1 of 8 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 

This Lease Agreement (“Agreement” or “Lease”), is made this the ____15th__ day of __November__, 

2021, by and between the City of Lynden (hereinafter called “Lessor” or “City”), and Kyle Olivarez 

(hereinafter called “Lessee” or “Olivarez”).  City and Olivarez may be referred to individually as 

“Party” and collectively as “Parties” herein. 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns the real property located at 8200 Double Ditch Road, Lynden, 

Washington, depicted as Lot C in Exhibit A (“Property” or “Leased Premises”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to lease the Property together with access thereto over an existing 

paved drive as shown on Exhibit A to Lessee on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, a portion of the Property is a public park and shall be used for public park purposes 

during the term of this Lease; and  

 

WHEREAS, the foregoing recitals are a material part of this Agreement;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, in recognition of the foregoing recitals, and in consideration of the covenants 

and agreements hereinafter contained, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Premises Leased and Consideration:   

 

The City hereby leases the Property to Lessee.  Lessee is authorized to possess the Property 

pursuant to this Agreement commencing on November 15, 2021.   

 

Lessee shall pay to the City as rent for the Property the sum of $2,000.00 per month inclusive 

of leasehold excise tax, in advance or on the first day of each calendar month. Rent will be 

prorated if the term does not start on the first day of the month or for any other partial month 

of the term. The first monthly payment will be prorated and shall be due upon execution of the 

Lease. Any rental payment not received by the City by the 10th day of each month shall give 

rise to a late charge of $10.00 per day from the first day rent is late, which shall be due and 

payable immediately as rent hereunder. If a personal check is dishonored, a $40.00 returned 

check charge will be assessed, and thereafter Lessee must pay by money order or cashier’s 

check.  

 

Notwithstanding, the foregoing, the City shall not charge or impose any late fees or other 

charges against Lessee for the nonpayment of rent that became due prior to six (6) months 

following the expiration of the Governor’s eviction moratorium (State of Washington 

Governor’s Proclamation 20-19.6) on June 30, 2021.      

 

29



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 2 of 8 

  

2. Term:   

 

The term of this Lease shall be one (1) year, beginning on the November 15, 2021 and ending 

on November 15, 2022, with an option for an additional year. Lessee may exercise the option 

to renew the lease for an additional year by providing to the City at least twenty (20) days’ 

written notice prior to the end of the lease term of Lessee’s intent to exercise the option.  

 

3. Termination:  

 

Lessee may terminate this Lease at the end of the lease term by giving the City at least twenty 

(20) days’ written notice prior to the end of the lease term. During the lease term, the City may 

terminate this Lease only due to a material breach by Lessee or if the Property becomes unsafe 

for residential use. The City may also terminate Lessee’s tenancy at the end of the lease term 

by giving Lessee at least sixty (60) days’ written notice prior to the end of the lease term that 

Lessee’s tenancy will be deemed expired (and thus terminated) at the end of the lease term. 

The City shall serve said notice in a manner consistent with RCW 59.12.040. 

 

4. Insurance:   

 

Lessee is encouraged to obtain a renters policy of insurance to insure the value of his personal 

property located on the Property. 

 

5. Exclusive Access Areas:  

 

Lessee shall have exclusive access to the residence on the Property and its immediate grounds, 

all appurtenances to the residence, and the two lower lawn areas (the “Exclusive Access 

Area”), subject to lawful entry by the City or its agents.  Outside of the Exclusive Access 

Area, remainder of the Property is a public park. The Parties agree that during the term of this 

Lease a legal description and depiction of the Exclusive Access Area may be prepared by 

Lessor to more precisely define the entire Exclusive Access Area, which description and 

depiction shall be made an addendum to this Agreement. 

 

6. Lessee Access to Areas Outside of Exclusive Access Areas:  

 

Lessee shall have non-exclusive access no greater and no less than any other member of the 

public to the Property outside the Exclusive Access Area.  Outside the Exclusive Access Area, 

Lessee shall not trim or remove vegetation, cut down trees, construct permanent or semi-

permanent structures or other improvements, or engage in excavation or fill work.   

  

7. Stormwater Discharge Element:  

 

30



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 3 of 8 

The City reserves the right to construct a stormwater discharge element on the Property for the 

Pepin Creek development project or Double Ditch overflow.  In no event shall the City place 

the stormwater discharge element in a place or manner such that it prevents Lessee’s 

residential use of the Property while this Lease is active. The City may prohibit Lessee from 

entering the area around the stormwater discharge element if required for safety or insurance 

purposes.  

 

8. Utilities and Fees:  

 

Lessee shall be solely responsible for all charges for light, heat, water, telephone, cable, 

sanitary services and other utilities which shall be charged against the Property during the full 

term of this Lease. In the event the City establishes utility service(s) outside the Exclusive 

Access Area, those costs and charges of utilities used outside of the Exclusive Access Area 

shall be borne by the City.    

 

9. Repairs, Maintenance, and Improvements – General Terms:  

 

The Property is accepted by Lessee in its present condition.  Lessee shall, at his own expense 

and at all times, keep the Exclusive Access Area neat, clean and in a sanitary condition, and 

keep and use the Exclusive Access Area in accordance with applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and requirement of governmental authorities.  Lessee shall permit no waste, 

damage or injury to the Exclusive Access Area; all waste and junk shall be removed promptly. 

No hazardous materials of any kind shall be brought on the Property by Lessee, other than 

normal cleaning products, lawn care maintenance products and products typically stored at a 

person’s place of residence primarily used for maintenance and repair. Lessee shall maintain 

the Exclusive Access Area in as good condition as they now are, reasonable use and wear 

excepted, and damage by fire and other casualty excepted.   

 

10. Repairs, Maintenance, and Improvements – Specific Terms:  

 

a. Written Permission of City Required. Prior to undertaking any major maintenance 

or improvements in the Exclusive Access Area, the Lessee shall obtain the written 

permission of the City detailing the work to be performed.   Lessee shall not undertake 

any maintenance or improvement activity outside the Exclusive Access Area. 

 

b. Residence. Lessee shall be solely responsible for maintenance of the interior and 

exterior of the residence. This responsibility extends to elements of the residence 

including, but not limited to: exterior walls and siding, roofs, foundations, decks, 

plumbing and electrical elements located inside of the residence, interior walls, 

flooring, all appliances, and all other interior or attached exterior fixtures. The Lessee 

may maintain and improve these elements in any way such that the value or safety of 

the Property is not greatly diminished, subject to Section 10(a) above.  

 

31



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 4 of 8 

c. Outdoor Exclusive Access Area. Lessee shall be responsible for mowing the two 

lower lawn areas, and maintenance of the grounds in the immediate vicinity of the 

residence, and all other outdoor portions of the Exclusive Access Area. The City shall 

supply Lessee with a suitable lawn mower for mowing the lawns. 

 

d. City Maintenance and Improvements. The City shall maintain all areas of the 

Property outside of the Exclusive Access Area. The City may make improvements to 

these areas of the Property, including but not limited to adding park-like features such 

as on-site parking, playground equipment, trails, and other amenities. Lessee 

acknowledges that some or all of these improvements may take place while he resides 

on the Property.   

 

e. Capital Improvements. Any capital improvements required to the Property shall be 

at the sole cost and expense of the City.  The City need not make any needed capital 

improvements if it determines in its sole and absolute discretion that such capital 

improvements do not make economic sense.  In such an event, Lessee shall have the 

option to terminate the Lease on five (5) days’ notice if the needed capital 

improvements injure their reasonable use and enjoyment of the Property.   

 

11. No Commercial Use by Lessee:  

 

Lessee shall not operate a commercial venture of any kind on the Property.   

 

12. Subletting or Assignment:   

 

Lessee shall not sublet, or through any other process, transfer to any other person rental of the 

Property, or any other right or privilege, without written permission of the City. 

 

13. Right of Access:   

 

The City shall have the right to enter the Exclusive Access Area at all reasonable times for the 

purpose of inspection or of making excavations, surveys, design reviews, repairs, additions or 

alterations.  Unless an emergency situation exists, all access by the City to the Exclusive 

Access Area shall require no less than twenty-four (24) hour prior written notice. The City 

shall have the right to enter areas on the Property other than the Exclusive Access Area at any 

time, with or without notice to Lessee.  

 

14. Default:   

 

Material breaches of this Lease by Lessee shall constitute default and be grounds for 

termination of the Lease.  In the event of a default by Lessee, the City may terminate this 

Lease and seek removal of Lessee from the premises, upon providing written notice as 

required by law.     

32



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 5 of 8 

 

15. Accidents and Non-Liability:   

 

Lessee agrees that the City shall not be liable for loss arising out of damage to or destruction 

of stored material goods and chattels or livestock resulting from any defect in the Property or 

from any other cause, while in the possession of Lessee.  This Agreement shall be binding 

whether or not such damage or destruction be caused by the neglect of the City or its, agents, 

servants, or employees, and further, any and all right of subrogation by any insurance carrier is 

hereby waived, except as herein described.   

 

16. Abandoned Property:   

 

Upon termination of Lease and surrendering possession of the Property to the City by the 

Lessee, or at the completion of the rental term or by any other means, any property remaining 

in or about the Property shall be assumed by the City to be abandoned property and may be 

disposed of in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

 

17. Relationship of the Parties:  

 

The Parties agree that they are each independent entities operating pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. No agent, employee, servant or representative of any Party shall 

be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant or representative of any other Party for any 

purpose. Each Party will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its 

agents, employees, and servants during the term of this Agreement. 

 

18. Indemnification and Hold Harmless:   

 

Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City from any and all claims, suits, 

actions, damage awards, fee awards, fines, or penalties, whether to person or property, or 

expense of any type or nature which may occur to the City including reasonable attorneys' 

fees, expert’s fees and other costs, based upon the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of 

Lessee, its agents and/or employees in the performance of this Agreement.  In any case in 

which suit or action is instituted against the City by reason of damages or injury caused in 

whole or in part by the gross negligence or intentional misconduct of Lessee, its agents and/or 

employees, the City shall cause written notice thereof to be given to Lessee and Lessee 

thereupon shall have the duty to appear and defend in any such suit or action, without cost or 

expense to the City.  For purposes of carrying out this indemnification and hold harmless 

provision, Lessee expressly waives any immunity it may otherwise have pursuant to Title 51, 

Industrial Insurance provisions of the Revised Code of Washington.   

 

19. Costs and Attorneys’ Fees:  

 

33



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 6 of 8 

In the event any unlawful detainer action, lawsuit, or other legal proceeding is commenced 

pertaining to this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all of its reasonable 

legal costs and attorney’s fees incurred from the other party.  

 

20. Extent of Agreement:   

 

This Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties.  The 

Parties agree that there are no other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject 

matter of the Agreement. 

 

21. Notice and Rent Payment.   

 

Any rent, notice, declaration, demand or communication to be given by a Party to this 

Agreement to the other shall be in writing and transmitted to the other Party by personal 

service or certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage fully prepaid, addressed as 

follows: 

 

City of Lynden:     Lessee:    

__________________   Kyle Olivarez  

__________________   __________________   

__________________   __________________ 

__________________   __________________ 

 

The mailing and certifying of any such notice as herein provided shall be sufficient service 

thereof.  All notices given in compliance with this section shall be deemed effective two (2) 

business days following the deposit thereof in the U.S. mail, irrespective of the date of actual 

receipt of such notice by the addressee.  Either Party may, by notice, change its address for 

notice. 

 

22. Recording. 

 

Either Party may choose to record this Lease with the Whatcom County Auditor’s Office. The 

recording Party shall be responsible for the costs of recording and shall provide the other Party 

a copy of the recorded Lease.  

 

23. Entire Agreement.   

 

This Lease Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties hereto and supersedes all of 

their previous understandings and agreements, written and oral, with respect to this 

transaction.  Neither the City nor Lessee shall be liable to the other for any representations 

made by any person concerning the Property or regarding the terms of this Agreement, except 

to the extent that the same are expressed in this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended 

34



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 7 of 8 

only by written instrument executed by the City and Lessee or their lawful successors and 

assigns subsequent to the date hereof. 

 

24. Governing Law and Venue Stipulation:   

 

This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the 

State of Washington and it is mutually understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this 

Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to interpretation 

and performance.  Any action in law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding, for the 

enforcement of the Agreement, or any of the provisions contained therein, shall be instituted 

and maintained only in the Whatcom County Superior Court, Bellingham, Washington. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereto set their hands and seals the date first above 

written. 

 

LESSOR: LESSEE: 

THE CITY OF LYNDEN  

 

 

By__________________________ ___________________________ 

     Scott Kothuis, Mayor Kyle Olivarez 

 

 

 

 

 

35



LEASE AGREEMENT - Page 8 of 8 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

 ) § 

COUNTY OF WHATCOM ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that SCOTT KORTHUIS, the Mayor of the 

City of Lynden, signed this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the 

uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument and acknowledged that he had the authorization to sign 

said instrument on behalf of the Lessor herein. 

 

 

 Dated:_________________ 

 

____________________________________ 

 

___________________, NOTARY PUBLIC 

in and for the State of WA.  My commission 

expires______________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

 ) § 

COUNTY OF WHATCOM ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that KYLE OLIVAREZ signed this 

instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned 

in the instrument and acknowledged that he had the authorization to sign said instrument. 

 

 

 Dated:_________________ 

 

____________________________________ 

 

___________________, NOTARY PUBLIC 

in and for the State of WA.  My commission 

expires______________. 

 

36



October 27, 2021 

Schoolyard Subcommittee Meeting Notes 

Attending:  Paul Harris, Dale Bedlington, Vern Meenderinck, Ron DeValois, Brent DeRuyter, Harlan Kredit 

General Discussion: 

We met to review the surveys that were turned in as a result of the community meeting that was held in 

September.  We identified the highest priority items but all agreed that we need a professional planner to 

ensure that the Schoolyard park is developed in the best possible manner. 

Following are the recommendations that we will make to the planner: 

1. Two acres of the park (east side) will be left as an open space. 

2. A play area featuring several different units for varying ages in one location. 

3. A restroom that is centrally located with a pavilion attached (one design) and a separate 

pavilion and restroom (2nd design).  Discussed the merits of having a covered area close to 

restroom building versus a freestanding pavilion. Hopefully, the ultimate design would be a 

building with a “school house” look to it 

4. A band shell type structure (does not need to be large) in the northwest corner. 

5. Leave the backstop in the northeast corner. 

6. Relocate a basketball court 

7. Continue the planting of trees around the property with some trees scattered in the developed 

area. 

8. Angled parking to be developed on the south side and west side. 

9. A walkway through the developed area which could also be used for maintenance purposes.  

10. Agreed the present fence should be removed with some type of enclosure to be installed to 

keep vehicles from driving on the property.  

Other discussion notes: 

1. The planner could be the same person employed by the City to develop a plan for the Heusinkveld 

property.  Vern will be contacting him soon. 

2. Agreed that an irrigation system will be necessary.   

3. Discussed a water park but due to the high expense for maintenance and installation, it was not 

considered to be a priority item to include.  

4. Also discussed a dog park and agreed not to recommend one be included.  

5. Next meeting will be called when we have several designs to evaluate.  It is a reminder that we are 

an advisory committee to the City of Lynden and have no legal standing.  However, the City seeks 

our input as the Parks Department moves forward.  

6. Discussed the parameters and possible location of a plaque for donors who helped purchase the 

property as well as those who would be involved in supporting some of the infrastructure such as a 

play area, restrooms, band shell, etc. Mauri Ingram from the Whatcom Foundation has offered to 

continue to serve as the depository for gifts and contributions. (much appreciated) 

7. Need to be sure we consider maintenance issues as we move forward.  

8. Noted that it is our desire to make this park “special” with a unique and friendly feel and not a 

carbon copy of other parks in other communities. 

 

Harlan Kredit 

37



 

 

38


	Top
	1.	Parks Committee Nov. 15, 2021
	Parks Committee Minutes Oct. 18, 2021

	2.	Parks Committee Nov, 15 2021 camping public places
	Camping Committe Packet

	3.	Parks Committee Nov. 15, 2021 C.	 Dickinson House Lease
	Olivarez Lease Agreement Updated 11.09.21 (003)

	4.	Parks Committee Nov. 15, 2021 Glenning property
	2021 October 27 Planning Meeting

	5.	Parks Committee Nov. 15, 2021 Park Up Dates
	Bottom

